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May 31, 2019


Resource International
ATTN:  Scott Courtney
9560 Kings Charter Drive
Ashland, VA 23005 


RE:	Wood Park Court Multitenant Warehouse
	SPR # 4-19
	E&S # 5480
	PZ # 19-30000014
	BP # 19-09900033


Dear Mr. Courtney,

	The Department of Public Works has reviewed the above captioned site plan submission and would like to offer the following comments; Please note, these comments have been submitted based on the requirements of the following Virginia State Laws and Hanover County Codes: Chapter 10, Article V, Stormwater Management, Chapter 10, Article I, Erosion and Sediment Control, Code of Hanover; Chapter 10, Article II, Chesapeake Bay Preservation, Code of Hanover; Chapter 12, Floodplain and Drainage Control, Code Of Hanover; and the Hanover County Drainage Design Handbook (February 12, 2014):
(ALL PREVIOUSLY MADE COMMENTS IN ITALICS)

1. The Erosion and Sediment Control (E&S) inspection fee is based on the amount of land disturbance certified on the cover sheet of the plan (5.49 acres [note limit of 10 acres max]).  Please note that the E&S fee for this project must be paid prior to issuance of the land disturbance permit.  The fee has been calculated to be $2,247.00. This fee is based on the current fee rate of $600.00 minimum base fee, plus $300.00 per acre ($3,600.00 maximum fee). You must provide the cashier with the project tracking number to facilitate the payment process. Please submit payment to the cashier located in the Treasurer’s Office.  Do not submit payment to the Department of Public Works. PLEASE NOTE: Any increase / decrease in the proposed acreage of land disturbance will change the aforementioned fee.  Also, since the E&S inspection fees are due at time of plan approval, any plan approved after the date on which a fee base increase is enacted will be subject to that increase. 

2. An E&S bond will be required prior to issuance of the Land Disturbance Permit.  The bond amount is determined based on the amount of E&S controls required for the project.  The bond has been calculated to be $33,899.00.  This bond amount is subject to change if E&S quantities change with project design.  The bond may be in the form of cash, irrevocable letter of credit, or surety and must be on the County format (please check with your lender to ensure they have the correct forms).  The bond form (cash, ILC, or surety) must be completed, notarized and submitted to this department with the bond amount prior to any land disturbing activities on site.  E&S bonds will be held by this department until the site work is complete and there is a minimum 85% established healthy vegetation over all non-hardened or denuded surfaces.

3. Please add the plan project numbers BP # 19-09900033, PZ # 19-30000014, SPR # 4-19, and E&S # 5480 to the cover sheet. 

4. Timmons Group has proposed a plan for the development of the neighboring lot to the east that is currently under review.  Coordination is recommended regarding the stormwater design of their site as they are proposing utilization of the existing ditches.  Please analyze whether the ditches proposed with this plan can be paved and if the site’s proposed stormwater basins can be removed in order for your site to meet permissible velocity at the outfall.  In this case, a demonstration that the site is less than 1% of the drainage area at the outfall to natural channel must be provided.  There is a considerable amount of offsite drainage being directed at the proposed ditch proposed on the Timmons Group plan.  It is also recommended that the design of the slopes be reevaluated to take into consideration the velocities and the amount of water that will be entering the ditch during the 10 year and 100 year storms from the adjacent properties. Please clarify if consideration regarding the proposed design and the depth and slope of the ditch has been made.  If not, please provide a mechanism to capture the offsite drainage.  Other options should be analyzed – i.e. as raising the bottom of the ditch and installing an inlet to capture offsite drainage.  Please coordinate with Timmons Group regarding this design.

5. Please provide the following information on the plan sheets:
· An analysis of the downstream capacity of existing roadside ditches for 2 year permissible velocity, 10 year capacity, and full development to outfall.
· Show consistency with the approved site plan for Hunter’s Ridge Industrial Park assumptions.
· Show consistency with the Timmons Group plan for the proposed ditch and assumptions.

6. The proposed outfall location is currently in a state of disrepair.  Please provide a design for improvement of the outfall to meet the requirements of the existing approved site plan for Hunter’s Ridge Industrial Park in order to be approved to discharge at this location.  Because the location is offsite, a temporary construction easement will be required.

7. Revise drainage areas to include drainage to existing waterway to the west of proposed warehouse; drainage of all flow into site from offsite including area north of Basin # 1; and area of each basin. (C-10)

8. Please ensure there is no disturbance with in the RPA limits.  There are proposed spot shots with in the RPA limits. (C-4)

9. Provide elevations, grading, and distance to RPA in the area along RPA limits and on the south side of the proposed Buildings # 4 and # 5 on sheet C-4.

10. Please correct conflict with silt fence and Building # 5 on the south side of the three smaller units of Building # 5 on sheet C-4.

11. Please provide a note on the plans stating, “As required by the recorded Maintenance Agreement, prior to release of the site’s VSMP Bond the Owner shall submit a construction record drawing for the permanent stormwater BMPs. The construction record drawing shall be appropriately sealed and signed by a professional registered in the Commonwealth of Virginia, certifying that the stormwater management facilities have been constructed in accordance with the approved plan (9 VAC 25-870-55D). The construction record drawing will show all significant facility features to including finished elevations of all pipes, risers, and excavation and thickness of significant layers and BMP features. According to state guidance, construction record drawings might include documented revisions to the approved construction plans or approved amendments to the plans (“Red Line Drawings”); shop drawings; as-built survey drawings showing topography, elevations, and dimensions of storage and hydraulic control structures; special inspections; etc. The drawings may be sealed by an Architect, Landscape Architect, Land Surveyor, or Professional Engineer who is duly qualified and licensed in accordance with Virginia Code and Administrative Code”. Please be aware that inspections of some stormwater management practices are needed during construction.  Qualified individuals should use detailed inspection checklists to include sign-offs at critical stages of construction, to ensure that the contractor’s interpretation of the plan is consistent with the designer’s intentions.

12. A basin maintenance agreement must be recorded with deed book and page number depicted on the plan prior to site plan approval.  In addition to the facility maintenance, a professional engineer must inspect the on-site facility / dam (including outlet works) during the last 60 days of the first year of operation, and at least once every five years thereafter.  The engineer’s inspection report must be subsequently submitted to Hanover County DPW for their review.

13. Provide a note on the plans stating that the Owner/Developer must submit a Construction Record Drawing that has been signed and sealed by a professional registered in the Commonwealth of Virginia certifying that each BMP has been constructed in accordance with the approved plan.

14. Sediment / Stormwater Basin - Please provide the following information on the plan sheets: 
a) All riprap should be a minimum Class I and 2.0 feet thick. (C-5)
b) The Q100 peak elevation appears to be less than 1.0 feet below the top of the dam. There should be a minimum, of 1.0 freeboard between the top of dam and the post developed Q100 elevation considering primary and secondary settlement factor of the dam after construction. (C-5)
c) Please revise location of emergency spillway in Basin # 1 from the north side of the basin to the south side of the basin on sheet C-4.
d) Structures # 8 and # 9 need to be properly spaced and/or additional measures used to ensure proper basin function.
e) Please ensure Basin # 1 and # 2 have a minimum 1% slope at the bottom of basin. (C-5)
f) Please provide grading of emergency spillways. (C-4) 
g) Please add concrete risers to Erosion Control Quantities on sheet C-14.
h) Please revise labelling of Basin # 1 and Basin # 2 on sheet C-3.





[bookmark: _GoBack]If you should have any questions concerning the detailed comments made during the review of your plans, please give me a call at 365-6181.  When resubmitting plans, please return a copy of these comments with a note stating how/where each comment was addressed.

								Sincerely,


								Nicole Onellion, E.I.T.
								Civil Engineer I
								Department of Public Works
Cc:  	MTL Development, LLC
	ATTN: David Martin
	11250 Central Drive
	Ashland, VA 23005 

	Megan Dalzell, Planning Department
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